
December 16, 2020 Via Zoom and Googledoc 

WESTPORT BOARD OF EDUCATION 

POLICY COMMITTEE 

NOTICE OF SPECIAL MEETING 

AGENDA 

(Agenda Subject to Modification in Accordance with Law) 

SPECIAL NOTICE ABOUT PROCEDURES FOR THIS ELECTRONIC MEETING: 

Pursuant to the Governor’s Executive Orders No. 7B and 9H, there will not be a physical 
location for this meeting. This meeting will be held electronically and live streamed on 
westportct.gov and shown on Optimum Government Access Channel 79 and Frontier Channel 
6020. Emails to BOE members can be sent to BOE@westportps.org. Comments to be read 
during the public comment period must be submitted to the meeting’s Googledoc during the 
submission period. Please see the following link for instructions and guidelines: 
https://www.westportps.org/uploaded/site_files/www/boe/Procedures_and_Guidelines_for_ 
Public_Participation_in_Remote_Board_Meetings.pdf. We will use our best efforts to read public 
comments if they are received during the public comment period and if they state your full name 
and address. Meeting materials will be available at westportps.org along with the meeting notice 
posted on the Meeting Agenda page. 

WORK SESSION:  
8:00 a.m. Held Remotely Via Zoom Pursuant to Executive Order 7B and 9H 

DISCUSSION: 

1. Review of CABE Audit, CABE Policy Highlights and Updates, and Shipman & Goodwin
model policies for planning future policy work, pages 1-108

2. Any Other Policy Matters

ADJOURNMENT 

The meeting can also be viewed on Cablevision on channel 79; Frontier channel 6020, and by video stream @www.westportct.gov 

. 

PUBLIC PARTICIPATION WELCOME USING THE FOLLOWING GUIDELINES: 

 Public comment will be accepted via a Google doc and the comments will be read aloud at the meeting. A link will be

provided prior to the meeting. 

 There will be no in-person public comment due to public health concerns.

 A maximum of 15 minutes will be provided for public comments.

 Comments on agenda items are limited to 1 minute each.

It is the policy of the Town of Westport that all Town-sponsored public meetings and events are 

accessible to people with disabilities. If you need assistance in participating in a meeting or event due to 

a disability as defined under the Americans with Disabilities Act, please contact Westport’s ADA 

Coordinator at 203-341-1043 or eflug@westportct.gov at least three (3) business days prior to the 

scheduled meeting or event to request an accommodation.

https://www.westportps.org/uploaded/site_files/www/boe/Procedures_and_Guidelines_for_Public_Participation_in_Remote_Board_Meetings.pdf
https://www.westportps.org/uploaded/site_files/www/boe/Procedures_and_Guidelines_for_Public_Participation_in_Remote_Board_Meetings.pdf
mailto:eflug@westportct.gov


December 16, 2020     Page 1



December 16, 2020     Page 2



December 16, 2020     Page 3



December 16, 2020     Page 4



December 16, 2020     Page 5



December 16, 2020     Page 6



December 16, 2020     Page 7



December 16, 2020     Page 8



December 16, 2020     Page 9



December 16, 2020     Page 10



December 16, 2020     Page 11



December 16, 2020     Page 12



December 16, 2020     Page 13



December 16, 2020     Page 14



December 16, 2020     Page 15



December 16, 2020     Page 16



December 16, 2020     Page 17



December 16, 2020     Page 18



December 16, 2020     Page 19



December 16, 2020     Page 20



December 16, 2020     Page 21



December 16, 2020     Page 22



December 16, 2020     Page 23



December 16, 2020     Page 24



December 16, 2020     Page 25



December 16, 2020     Page 26



December 16, 2020     Page 27



December 16, 2020     Page 28



December 16, 2020     Page 29



December 16, 2020     Page 30



December 16, 2020     Page 31



December 16, 2020     Page 32



December 16, 2020     Page 33



December 16, 2020     Page 34



December 16, 2020     Page 35



December 16, 2020     Page 36



December 16, 2020     Page 37



December 16, 2020     Page 38



December 16, 2020     Page 39



December 16, 2020     Page 40



December 16, 2020     Page 41



December 16, 2020     Page 42



December 16, 2020     Page 43



December 16, 2020     Page 44



December 16, 2020     Page 45



December 16, 2020     Page 46



December 16, 2020     Page 47



December 16, 2020     Page 48



December 16, 2020     Page 49



December 16, 2020     Page 50



December 16, 2020     Page 51



December 16, 2020     Page 52



December 16, 2020     Page 53



December 16, 2020     Page 54



December 16, 2020     Page 55



December 16, 2020     Page 56



December 16, 2020     Page 57



December 16, 2020     Page 58



December 16, 2020     Page 59



December 16, 2020     Page 60



December 16, 2020     Page 61



December 16, 2020     Page 62



December 16, 2020     Page 63



December 16, 2020     Page 64



December 16, 2020     Page 65



December 16, 2020     Page 66



December 16, 2020     Page 67



December 16, 2020     Page 68



December 16, 2020     Page 69



December 16, 2020     Page 70



December 16, 2020     Page 71



December 16, 2020     Page 72



December 16, 2020     Page 73



December 16, 2020     Page 74



December 16, 2020     Page 75



~Page 1~ 

Connecticut Association of 

Boards of Education 
 

Vincent A. Mustaro, Senior Staff Associate for Policy Services 

 

PRESENTS 

POLICY HIGHLIGHTS 
 

September 4, 2020 Volume 20 – Issue #5 

 

Guidance Provided Regarding Fire Drills and Crisis Response Drills: C.G.S. 10-231 details 

the responsibilities of local school districts regarding the conducting of fire drills and crisis 

response drills. The Connecticut State Department of Education (CSDE) released Addendum 8 

to the Adapt, Advance, Achieve reopening guidance concerning fire and school safety during 

COVID-19.  The Addendum is available on CABE’s website. 

 

The Addendum states, “During the 2020–21 school year, it will be necessary for schools to 

continue to perform drills while managing social distancing during evacuation and at designated 

assembly locations. Students and staff should be instructed that during an actual emergency, 

evacuation and safety are the first priorities and social distancing should be enforced only once 

students are outside any threatened structure or area and in a safe location. 

 

Some of the key guidelines are as follows: 

 

1. Fire Drills (i.e., building evacuations) 

a. Conduct fire/evacuation drills as required to ensure staff and students understand how 

best to exit the building as quickly as possible while ensuring mask wearing and 

minimizing contact between individuals in hallways and stairwells. 

b. Identify multiple designated assembly locations in safe areas that allow for students 

and adults to maintain social distancing while ensuring separation between cohort 

groups.  

 

2. Lockdown Drills (i.e., shelter in place) 

a. Conduct lockdown drills in classroom settings while maintaining social distancing 

and using masks.  

b. Conduct lockdown drills in classrooms without hiding/sheltering in close proximity to 

each other but provide an overview of how to shelter or hide in the classroom during 

an actual emergency. 

c.  Conduct lockdown drills on a staggered schedule with smaller numbers of students 

present to maintain social distancing. However, schools must be certain that all 

students are receiving instruction in emergency procedures and participating in drills 

while they are in attendance in person.  

December 16, 2020     Page 76



~Page 2~ 

 

3. Other Drills 

a. Additional preparation and planning activities to address other crises and situations 

should also continue, including but not limited to: table top exercises, lock-out drills, 

chemical exposures, and situations related to COVID-19.  

b. If conducting drills using a modified procedure, the drill must be conducted with all 

students in the school building on that school day and it may be necessary to conduct 

the drill during a class period that is extended for this purpose. If schools reopen with 

a hybrid in-person model, such as one in which students attend school on alternate 

school days to reduce the occupancy of the school building, schools must be certain 

that all students receive instruction in emergency procedures, and participate in drills 

while they are in attendance in-person. 

 

4. Fire Doors  

Fire doors must always remain closed unless equipped with a self-closing mechanism that 

activates when the fire alarm goes off.  

 

5. Classroom Doors 

Classroom doors can be open as long as: 1) the school building has a full sprinkler 

system; or, 2) the school safety plan includes language that these doors must be closed 

upon leaving the room.  

 

6. Room and Space Partitions and Dividers 

The use of both rigid and flexible plastic material in schools and classrooms includes the 

extension of existing half-height walls, sub-dividing larger spaces, and other protective 

barriers between people. The Connecticut State Fire Marshal has indicated that these 

materials will be permitted with some limitations regarding the installation as outlined 

below. 

 (Note: Shower Curtains and Shower Liners are not permitted.) 

 

7. Rigid Material and Flexible Plastic (Polyethylene Sheeting): 

a. The use of fire-retardant polyethylene sheeting is recommended.  

b. The thickness should be sufficient for the intended application.  

c. The supporting method should ensure sufficient strength and stability.  

d. If hung from the ceiling, the material should allow a minimum of an 18" dropdown 

space from the ceiling to (a) assure proper air circulation (i.e., not impede the day to 

day air flow from the heating, ventilation and air-conditioning [HVAC] system), (b) 

so as not to affect automatic fire detection systems, (c) so as not to cause a sprinkler 

obstruction or delay in operation. 

e. If used as an extension of a half-height wall, the material should stop 18" from the 

ceiling for reasons stated above. 

 

 

December 16, 2020     Page 77



~Page 3~ 

 

8. Use of Tents and other Membrane Structures  

Chapter 31 of the 2015 International Fire Code Portion of Part III of the 2018 Connecticut 

State Fire Safety Code addresses the requirements and restrictions for using tents or other 

membrane structures for use as classroom space or to provide shelter for staff and students 

outside the school building. For additional resources and information, please visit the Office 

of the State Fire Marshal website. 

 
Source: Addendum 8 to Adapt, Advance, Achieve: Connecticut’s Plan to Learn and Grow Together, “Fire 

and School Safety During Covid-19, CSDE, August 24, 2020. 

 

Policy Implications: Policy #6114.1, “Fire Emergency (Drills)/Crisis Response Drills,” pertains 

to this topic. The policy and its accompanying administrative regulation clearly detail a school 

district’s responsibilities conducting fire and crisis response drills to be in compliance with the 

statutes. This is a recommended policy for inclusion in a district’s policy manual. 

 

The aforementioned Addendum is operational, indicating the manner in which this policy is to be 

implemented during the COVID-19 emergency. It can, if a district so chooses, be added as a new 

section to the policy and/or administrative regulation, titled as “Implementation of Drills during 

COVID-19 Emergency.” 

 

Consider Homeless Education Requirements as School Reopen: As schools reopen in some 

format during this continuing COVID-19 emergency, local school officials must be mindful of 

provisions in the McKinney-Vento Homeless Assistance Act, as amended by the Every Student 

Succeeds Act, Pub. L. No. 114-95 pertaining to homeless students. 

 

Districts must review and revise policies that act as barriers to the enrollment of children and 

youths experiencing homelessness, according to Section 722(g)(1)(I) of McKinney-Vento, which 

defines enrollment as “attending classes and participating fully in school activities (Section 

725(1)).” 

“Therefore, if personal protective equipment (PPE) is required as a condition of returning to 

class, the school district must ensure that the requirement does not pose barriers to students 

experiencing homelessness,” says SchoolHouse Connection Executive Director Barbara 

Duffield. “This might mean providing PPE directly, or ensuring that families and unaccompanied 

youth are able to obtain it.” 

Duffield says state education agencies are required under the law to “address other problems 

with respect to the education of homeless children and youths, including problems resulting 

from enrollment delays that are caused by uniform or dress code requirements (Section 

722(g)(1)(H)).” She notes that PPE requirements would be similar to a uniform or dress code 

requirements and would need to be addressed. 

 

Schools should work with organizations, including other federally funded programs, to ensure 

the needs of homeless children and youths are met throughout the COVID-19 response. 

 
Source: “Remember homeless education requirements for school reopenings,” by Johnny Jackson, 

District Administration, June 23, 2020. 

 

December 16, 2020     Page 78



~Page 4~ 

 

Policy Implications: The Every Student Succeeds Act (ESSA) reauthorized Title IX, Part A, the 

McKinney-Vento Homeless Assistance Act.  Every school district is required to designate a 

homeless liaison. A local liaison is the local staff person responsible for working with homeless 

education issues in the school district. 

 

Liaisons are responsible for ensuring the identification, school enrollment, attendance and 

opportunities for academic success of students in homeless situations. Some of these activities 

may be accomplished by the liaison himself or herself, while others are accomplished by 

coordinating the efforts of other staff. By linking students and their families to school and 

community services, liaisons play a critical role in stabilizing students and promoting academic 

achievement at the individual, school and district level. 

 

The State Department of Education has stated, “Where a district has valid proof of residency 

requirements, it must exempt from those requirements all children and youth who are considered 

homeless.  These children and youth have a right to enroll in school, even if their families cannot 

produce the documents that would otherwise be required to prove residency. The McKinney-

Vento Act defines the term “homeless children and youth” as including, in part, “children and 

youths who are sharing the housing of other persons due to loss of housing, economic hardship, 

or a similar reason; are living in motels, hotels, trailer parks, or camping grounds due to the lack 

of alternative adequate accommodations; are living in emergency or transitional shelters; are 

abandoned in hospitals; or are awaiting foster care placement,” as well as children of migratory 

agricultural workers.” 

 

If assistance is required in matters relating to the Education of Homeless Children and Youths 

Program, the Connecticut State Department of Education can be contacted at 860-807-2058 or 

consult their Website. 

 

Policy #5118.1. “Homeless Students” pertains to this topic. It is a mandated policy for inclusion 

in a district’s policy manual. 

 

Priority Needs to be Given to SEL: Schools that attempt to start the year with something other 

than social-emotional learning are “going to lose,” says Ralph Simpson, deputy superintendent in 

Clayton County Public Schools in Georgia. As teachers restart learning this new school year, 

they should focus on student social-emotional learning, or SEL, before trying to make up for 

learning loss, educators and other experts say. 

 

Students and staff will need to process the emotions and traumas experienced over the last 

several months before instruction can resume effectively. “We don’t want to start the year off by 

testing students, we want to start the year off by connecting with students,” says Ebony Lee, 

assistant superintendent for curriculum, instruction and assessment at Clayton County Public 

Schools. 

 

Lee, and many of her colleagues across the country, say re-establishing relationships between 

students and educators will be the priority for the first few weeks of school. Research done in 

the wake of Hurricane Katrina showed that students struggled when schools focused too quickly 

on remediation, rather than social-emotional needs. 

 

December 16, 2020     Page 79



~Page 5~ 

 

“Students and their teachers will need to discuss the pandemic’s personal impact, and then build 

on that foundation to develop core competencies such as self-awareness and social-awareness,” 

Simpson says. “Some of these discussions may be controversial as teachers and students from 

different ethnic backgrounds share their experiences of COVID, the killing of George Floyd and 

other pressing issues.”   

 
Source: “Why social-emotional learning must come first when schools reopen,” by Matt Zalaznick, District 

Administration, July 7, 2020. 

 

Policy Implications: Connecticut has placed a statewide emphasis on the importance of social 

and emotional learning for students and staff in its school year reopening plans. 

 

Two policies which relate to this issue as the new school year begins are #6142.102, “Social and 

Emotional Learning (SEL),” and policy #6142.103. “Trauma Informed Schools.” These are 

recommended policies for your consideration. 

 

Food for Thought: 
 

“In the high school classroom you are a drill sergeant, a rabbi, a shoulder to cry on, a 

disciplinarian, a singer, a low-level scholar, a clerk, a referee, a clown, a counsellor, a dress-code 

enforcer, a conductor, an apologist, a philosopher, a collaborator, a tap dancer, a politician, a 

therapist, a fool, a traffic cop, a priest, a mother-father-brother-sister-uncle-aunt, a bookkeeper, a 

critic, a psychologist, the last straw.” 

 
Source:  Frank McCourt in Teacher Man (2005), p. 19 

 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Connecticut Association of Boards of Education ~ 81 Wolcott Hill Road, Wethersfield, CT 06109 ~ 860-571-7446 

 

December 16, 2020     Page 80



~Page 1~ 

Connecticut Association of 
Boards of Education 

 
Vincent A. Mustaro, Senior Staff Associate for Policy Services 

 
PRESENTS 

POLICY HIGHLIGHTS 
 

September 18, 2020 Volume 20 – Issue #6 
 
Face Mask Policy Updated, Again: Two recent actions by the State Department of Education 
(SDE) necessitated revisions to the face masks/coverings policy. The SDE issued “Addendum 
11” on August 31, 2020 and “Volume 3” of its “Frequently Asked Questions Regarding 
Reopening K-12 Public Schools” series on September 2, 2020. Governor Lamont’s Executive 
Order 7NNN, issued on August 14, 2020, mandated the wearing of face masks/coverings, with 
limited exemptions for those with a medical condition. This order requires the use of face 
masks/coverings for all students and staff when they are inside any school building. Schools are 
required to provide a face mask to any staff member or student who does not have one on any 
given school day or be prepared to deny entry to individuals who arrive at a school without a 
face covering. SDE also indicated that the facial coverings may also be required in certain 
situations outside the school building, including during outdoor instruction, extracurricular 
curricular activities, arrival and departure from the school and on school buses. 
 
Originally, the medical exemption required written documentation from a licensed medical 
provider, the Department of Developmental Services or another state agency providing or 
supporting services to people with disabilities. The documentation did not need to name or 
describe the qualifying condition. Additional qualifying information is provided by the SDE 
documents of August 31 and September 2. 
 
The SDE stated that the need for the medical exemption “is rare.”  It believes such exemptions 
“are generally limited to individuals suffering from severe chronic obstructive pulmonary disease 
(COPD) such as might be seen with cystic fibrosis, severe emphysema, heart failure, or 
significant facial burns that would cause extreme pain or interfere with the healing of a skin 
graft.” Further stated by SDE was “mild or intermittent respiratory or other common conditions 
such as asthma, cardiovascular diseases, kidney disease, or other similar conditions are generally 
not contraindications to the wearing of loose-fitting face coverings.” In short, the medical 
exemption has become more restricted. Regretfully, this information became available after 
schools notified parents of the face mask policy and the allowed exemptions to the policy. 
 
“Addendum 11” also provided additional information pertaining to the wearing of masks by 
teachers. It noted that teachers should wear a face mask/covering at all times in schools “except 
for in the rare circumstances where face covering is detrimental to the specific instruction being 
given.” The “Frequently Asked Questions” guidance elaborates on when the mask can be 
removed by a teacher.  

December 16, 2020     Page 81

http://www.cabe.org/�


~Page 2~ 

It provides that “when the wearing of a face mask is problematic (i.e., when the teacher’s and 
student’s mouth must be visible during speech therapy, when a child with hearing loss needs to 
read lips, etc.) other appropriate control measures should be implemented, including ensuring 
proper social distancing and/or the use of physical barriers between students and staff.” It 
remains unclear whether teachers can be allowed to not wear a mask for their entire class 
session. 
 
The “Frequently Asked Questions” document also provided some additional information 
regarding mask breaks for students. It stated that mask breaks outdoors are best. Mask breaks 
indoors must be done with social distancing maintained, in well-ventilated areas and with 
everyone facing in the same direction. It is suggested such breaks be limited to no more than 15 
minutes. 
 
The additional information provided by the SDE also indicates that students not wearing a face 
mask should not be sent to the school’s isolation room. 
 
Policy Implications: As additional information is made available by the SDE, the face 
mask/covering policy will be updated. Policy #4118.237/5141.8 has been revised, due to the 
additional information for the second time since it was first issued. It is available upon request. 
The revised policy has also been posted on the CABE website in the member section under “Hot 
Policy Topics.” 
 
Special Education Policies Revised: As a result of a court decision, A.R. v. Connecticut State 
Board of Education, all students with disabilities who have not yet turned 22 years of age and 
who have not received a regular high school diploma, remain eligible for special education 
services under the Individuals with Disabilities Education Act (IDEA) up until their 22nd 
birthday or until they graduate from high school with a regular high school diploma, whichever 
occurs first. 
 
Districts must contact al adult students and parents impacted by this court decision and advise 
them that they remain eligible for special education services under the IDEA until their 22nd 
birthday, as outlined in their IEP until they turn 22 years of age or they graduate with a regular 
high school diploma, whichever occurs first.  This includes continued eligibility for students who 
were already exited under IDEA because of turning 21 during the 2019-2020 school year, in 
accordance with then effective state law. 
 
The ruling found that because Connecticut provides public education to non-disabled individuals 
over the age of 21 in the form of adult education and GED programs, it must offer something 
similar for special education students. 
 
Policy Implications: Policy #6159, “Individualized Education Program/Special Education 
Program,” and policy #6171, “Special Education,” are impacted by this decision. They have been 
revised to be in compliance with this court ruling and directives from the State Department of 
Education. They are available upon request. Ii is mandated to have a policy pertaining to special 
education. Either one of these policies fulfills that obligation. 
 

December 16, 2020     Page 82



~Page 3~ 

Required Title-I Notifications: Schools are implementing fundamentally different ways of 
educating students during the COVID-19 pandemic. However, Title I schools must still ensure 
that they provide parent notifications required by the Elementary and Secondary Education Act, 
as amended by the Every Student Succeeds Act, Pub. Law No. 114-95, in a timely manner as the 
new school year has started. 
 
Listed below are the notifications to be sent to parents and their families at the beginning of the 
school year: 
 

1. Notice 1 – Parent and family engagement policies 

Districts must distribute their respective parent and family engagement policy to 
parents. (ESEA Section 1116(a)(2) and Section 1116(b)(1)) 

 
2. Notice 2 – Complaint procedures 

Districts must disseminate to parents the state educational agency’s written procedures 
for filing complaints about violations of the Title I statute. (ESEA Section 1112(e)(1)(A) 
and Section 1112(e)(1)(B)(ii)) 

 
3. Notice 3 – Teacher and paraprofessional qualifications 

Districts must inform parents of each child in a Title I school at the beginning of every 
school year of their right to request information on the professional qualifications of their 
children’s classroom teachers and paraprofessionals providing instructional support. 
Schools must notify parents if a child is taught for four consecutive weeks by a teacher 
who does not meet state certification. (ESEA Section 1112(e)(1)(A) and Section 
1112(e)(1)(B)(ii)) 
 

4. Notice 4 – Annual meeting 

Title I schools must notify parents of the required annual meeting and their right to 
request additional meetings. (ESEA Section 1116(c)(1) and Section 1116(c)(2)) 
 

5. Notice 5 – Title I Information 

Title I schools must provide information to parents about the Title I, Part A program. – 
(ESEA Section 1116(c)(4) 
 

6. Notice 6- English learner students 

Districts are required to notify parents within 30 days if a child is placed in a Title I-
funded program for limited-English-proficient students. Specifically, they must be told 
the reasons for the identification, including the child’s level of English proficiency, how 
it was assessed, and the status of the child’s academic achievement. 
 
Schools must tell parents of alternative programs that they can opt out of entirely. This 
notice must be provided in an understandable and uniform format and, to the extent 
practicable, provided in a language that the parents can understand. (ESEA Section 
1112(e)(3)(A)) 
 

Source: “6 notifications to send to parents and families now,” by Charles Hendrix, District 
Administration, September 4, 2020. 

December 16, 2020     Page 83



~Page 4~ 

Policy Implications: Policy #6172.4, “Parent and Family Engagement Policy for Title I 
Students,” pertains to this topic and provides information pertaining to most of the above stated 
requirements. This is considered a mandated policy for inclusion in a district’s policy manual. 
Several versions of this policy are available. Policy #4222.1, “Title I Paraprofessionals,” pertains 
to the issue of paraprofessional qualifications. Policy #4111/4211, “Recruitment and Selection,” 
also pertains to the issue of teacher qualifications. Policy #6141.311, “Program for Limited 
English Proficient Students,” speaks to the issue of English learner students. 
 
Busing Realities to Recognize: 
“You take the nation’s largest system of mass transit and shut it down overnight – that’s going to 
have a ripple effect,” says Mike Martin, executive director of the National Association for Pupil 
Transportation. Martin was a co-administrator on a project that pulled the school bus 
transportation industry together in an effort to help school district leaders plan for fall 
reopenings. 
 
Formed in mid-May, the Student Transportation Aligned for Return to School (STARTS) Task 
Force released a 70-page report, featuring 27 guidelines and more than 250 individual tasks for 
consideration when determining how or whether to implement the guidelines for a district’s 
operation. Charlie Hood, executive director of the National Association of State Directors of 
Pupil Transportation Services, as well as another STARTS co-administrator, suggested that 
superintendents become familiar with the report. 
 
With the primary assumption that transportation is integral to education, administrators leading 
districts, believes Hood, must know the following nine realities about bus transportation as 
decisions about this area, and others, are made. 
 

1. An initial reopening plan is simply that, initial. Changes will need to be made as school 
district reopening plans evolve. 

2. Nearly all policy decisions have a trickle-down impact on busing. 

3. Transportation pivots can’t happen overnight, especially as school plans are subject to 
change based on health data. Re-establishing bus routes and stops, even with routing 
software in use, requires a constant eye for safety, and last-minute information often 
requires modifications, while ensuing health protocols are in place. 

4. Pivots requiring extra buses would likely take even longer. Transportation companies 
don’t have a large number of extra buses. The procurement process is sure to take time. 
Staffing is also an issue. “It takes time to train and license a driver.” 

5. Transportation staffing levels could fall to a point where busing can’t operate. The 
STARTS Task Force kept staff safety top-of-mind when doing its work. At some point 
operations would halt if too many staff got sick or didn’t feel comfortable continuing in 
their work.  

6. Managing transportation, especially now, requires a lot of collaboration. With any aspect 
of school operations, including busing, the pandemic has made it more critical to listen to 
employees and stakeholders at all levels. 

7. Delayed reopenings may kill transportation funding. There are massive implications from 
an operational and financial standpoint. 

December 16, 2020     Page 84



~Page 5~ 

8. COVID-related data reporting requirements are approaching. It would probably be 
beneficial for a superintendent or business official to forecast their administrative 
requirements and then work to set up the data collection infrastructure. 

9. Transportation officials and drivers are ready to step up. They are well-trained 
professionals. 

 
Source: “Bus stops: 9 school busing realities to recognize,” by Melissa Ezarik, District Administration, 
September 8, 2020. 

 
Policy Implications: Policies in the series 3541 pertain to the many aspects of school 
transportation. I am confident that school superintendents and business managers are well aware 
of these realities. 
 
Food for Thought: 
 
“Children will need a trusted adult with whom to share their troubles. Research on previous 
disasters shows that a teacher is most likely that trusted adult, but whether that teacher’s response 
is supportive determines whether students’ well-being improves.” 
 

Source: Micere Keels in “Preparing Educators for the Challenge Ahead.” Education Update, August 2020 
(Vol. 62, #8, pp. 1, 4) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Connecticut Association of Boards of Education ~ 81 Wolcott Hill Road, Wethersfield, CT 06109 ~ 860-571-7446 

 

December 16, 2020     Page 85



~Page 1~ 

Connecticut Association of 
Boards of Education 

 
Vincent A. Mustaro, Senior Staff Associate for Policy Services 

 
PRESENTS 

POLICY HIGHLIGHTS 
 

October 2, 2020 Volume 20 – Issue #7 
 
COVID-19 Travel Advisory Policy Modified: Governor Lamont recently issued Executive 
Order 9C which made some changes to the required 14-day self-quarantine for travelers coming 
to or returning to Connecticut from certain designated states or countries with a high positive 
case rate. The Executive Order provides travelers the option of producing proof of a negative 
COVID-19 test as an alternate to the self-quarantine requirement. The test must be completed 
within 72 hours prior to arrival in the state or at any time following entry into Connecticut, 
subject to some conditions. 
 
Policy Implications: Dual codified policy #4118.238/4218.238, 5141.81, “Self-Quarantine 
Policy/Regional Travel Advisory,” applicable to personnel and students, has been revised to 
comply with the new Executive Order. It is available upon request. It is also posted under “Hot 
Topics in Policy” in the member section of the CABE website. 
 
Deadline for Sexual Harassment Prevention Training Extended: The Connecticut 
Commission on Human Rights and Opportunities (CHRO) has extended the deadline by which 
all district employees are required to complete sexual harassment prevention training. 
Previously, the training was to have been completed by October 1, 2020. 
 
P.A. 19-16, “An Act Combatting Sexual Assault and Sexual Harassment,” made several changes 
concerning sexual harassment, sexual assault, discrimination complaints filed with the 
Commission on Human Rights and Opportunities and related matters. The Act specified the 
sexual harassment training and information requirement includes anyone employed by an 
employer, including someone employed by his or her parent, spouse, or child. 
 
This legislation expanded requirements for employers to train employees on sexual harassment 
laws and required CHRO to make related training materials available. Previously, employers 
with at least 50 employees were required to provide supervisory employees with two hours of 
training on federal and state sexual harassment laws and remedies available to victims. This 
legislation expanded this requirement to cover employers of any size and also non-supervisory 
employees for employers with at least three employees. The new statute indicated the training to 
be completed by October 1, 2020, one year after the effective date of the legislation. 
 
CHRO was required to develop and make available a free, online training and education video or 
other interactive method that fulfills the Act’s training requirements. In addition, employers 
required to provide this training must provide supplemental training at least every 10 years to 
update employees on the content of the training and education. 

December 16, 2020     Page 86

http://www.cabe.org/�


~Page 2~ 

By virtue of the Governor extending the pandemic state of emergency through February 2021, 
the deadline for the training has been extended to January1, 2021. 
 
Employers with three or more employees are also required to post in a prominent and accessible 
place a notice stating that sexual harassment is illegal and the remedies available to victims. This 
statute also requires employers to send a copy of this information to employees by email within 
three months of their hire if the employer has provided an email account to the employee or the 
employee has provided the employer with an email address.  If an employer has not provided 
email accounts to employees, it must post the information on its website, if it has one. 
 
A financial penalty can be imposed if an employer fails to provide the training and education as 
required. 
 
Policy Implications: Policy #4118.112/4218.112, “Sexual Harassment” and its accompanying 
administrative regulation and forms pertain to this topic. This is a recommended policy for 
placement in a district’s policy manual. Versions are available upon request or can be found in 
the CORE Manual posted on the CABE website.  
 
Livestreaming Classes and Privacy Issues: Many school districts have started the new school 
year with a hybrid approach to school scheduling. In some cases, teachers are simultaneously 
instructing students physically present in their classrooms with students who are at home, via 
livestream. Therefore, in such an arrangement, everyone, whether in class or remote, listen to the 
same lesson, ask questions, and receive feedback on independent work. Students engaged in 
remote learning see their classmates and feel part of the same community. 
 
However, concern has been voiced about the privacy implications of broadcasting a classroom. 
Some voice a concern that live streaming violates FERPA, which protects personally-identifiable 
information from student educational records from disclosure to third parties. Attorney Thomas 
Mooney, addressing this issue stated “Live streaming per se, however, does not implicate 
FERPA because it is simply instruction, not disclosure of student records.” 
 
The U.S. Department of Education, through its Student Privacy Policy Office (SPPO) provided 
guidance on this issue. It advised that third party visitors, such as parents or caregivers, can be 
present and observe a virtual lesson without violating FERPA provided personally-identifiable 
student information from educational records is not disclosed during the virtual lesson. The 
Agency recommends that school districts discourage visitors/non-students from observing virtual 
classes.  A student’s face merely appearing in a video doesn’t necessarily mean that video would 
be considered part of his/her education record. FERPA is not violated when parents/guardians 
observe a live-streamed lesson. 
 
Schools that want to livestream classrooms should provide professional development around 
FERPA to ensure student privacy is not compromised.  
 

Source: “As Teachers Livestream Classes, Privacy Issues Arise,” by Sarah Schwartz, Education Week, 
September 9, 2020. 
Source: “CAS Legal Mailbox Question of the Week,” by Thomas B. Mooney, September 11, 2020. 

 
Policy Implications: Policy #5125, “Student Educational Records/Annual Notification of 
Parent/Student Rights,” pertains to this topic. This is a mandatory policy for inclusion in a 
district’s manual. 

December 16, 2020     Page 87



~Page 3~ 

Study Considers the Role of Disciplinary Policies on School Shootings: Following the two 
horrific school shootings in 2018 in Parkland, Florida and Santa Fe, Texas questions have been 
raised as to whether discipline policies are linked to school shootings and/or whether alternative 
practices to suspension and expulsion make it more likely that a school could be targeted by an 
assailant or an angry student. 
 
The Government Accountability Office (GAO) examined K-12 school shooting data over a 10-
year period. The office focused its research on 318 school shootings that occurred between 2009-
2019 and resulted in 166 fatalities. 
 
Education and Labor Committee Chairman Robert C. “Bobby” Scott, D-Va., and Judiciary 
Committee Chairman Jerrold Nadler, D-N.Y., requested the report and asked the GAO to 
examine the relationship between school shootings and student discipline. Scott said the report is 
the first government-mandated collection of data on school shootings. 
 
The GAO analyzed data on school shootings and school characteristics from 2009-2019, 
conducted a literature review to identify empirical research from 2009 to 2019 that examined 
discipline approaches in school and their impact on school gun violence, school violence, or 
school safety and interviewed researchers about the challenges and limitations of conducting 
research on school discipline and school shootings. 
 
The comprehensive report indicated that school-related shootings that are the result of a dispute 
or grievance occur more often in schools in poor, urban settings that have a greater percentage of 
minority students. Wealthier schools in suburban and rural settings with fewer minority students 
saw more gun-related suicides and shootings that targeted staff and students, which led to higher 
fatalities per incident during that same time period, according to the report. 
 
The GAO found the majority of school shootings result from disputes or grievances, such as 
conflicts between students or staff, or between gangs. The next most common type of shooting at 
school is accidental. Additionally, GAO staff did not find empirical research in the last 10 years 
that directly examines the link between approaches to school discipline, whether exclusionary or 
nonexclusionary, and school shootings specifically. 
 
Previously, the GAO reported that exclusionary discipline, such as suspensions and expulsions, 
disproportionately affects boys, black students, and students with disabilities. “It is difficult to 
isolate the effect of any one variable in a school shooting, such as the role of school discipline, 
because multiple and complex factors affect an individual’s propensity toward violence, 
shootings have many types of shooters and many possible causes, and researchers have so few 
comparable cases to study,” the report states. 
 
The GAO indicated research promotes the use of nonexclusionary approaches, which include 
positive behavior supports, trauma-informed practices, social and emotional learning, and 
restorative justice, to address problematic behavior. Such approaches do not eliminate the need 
for suspensions and expulsions, but may help reduce districts’ reliance on them, voiced the 
GAO.  
 
Professor Jessica Dirsmith of Duquesne University believes schoolwide positive behavioral 
interventions and supports provide effective schoolwide school violence prevention practices as 
well as evidence-based interventions that are responsive to student needs.  

December 16, 2020     Page 88



~Page 4~ 

She stated “Grounded in decades of research, and shown to impact a number of important 
student-level and systems-level outcomes, including creating and maintaining safe and 
supportive schools, these practices aim to create safe environments by promoting positive change 
in student behavior.” 
 
The GAO report does not offer any recommendations but thoroughly examined school shooting 
data by type, location, time of day, school year, and relationship of the shooter to the school 
community. GAO researchers defined a school shooting as “Any time a gun is fired on school 
grounds, on a bus, during a school event, during school hours, or right before or after school.” 
 
Takeaways from GAO report 
 
The research focused on 318 school shooting incidents from 2009-2019. Listed below are the 
key takeaways from the research: 
 

• Region. School shootings occurred nationwide in every state except West Virginia and 
Wyoming. Half of all school shootings over the past 10 years occurred in the South and 
the greatest number of school shootings occurred in Florida (24), Texas (24), and Georgia 
(23). 

 
• School level. Most school shootings occurred in high schools, where incidents were most 

often related to disputes and grievances, school-targeted shootings, and suicides. In 
middle schools, accidental shootings and shootings related to disputes and grievances 
were the most prevalent. In elementary schools, most shootings were accidental. 

 
• Location. Most (61 percent) of school shootings occurred outside the school building. 

When shootings occurred outside a school building, disputes and grievances were the 
most prevalent reasons. When shootings occurred inside school buildings, they were most 
commonly accidental. Shootings that occurred inside a school building were, on average, 
three times deadlier per incident than shootings that occurred outside the school building. 

 
• Shooter. Half of the school shootings were committed by a student or former student. 

The other half were committed by individuals with no relationship to the school or whose 
relationship was unknown. With school shootings that were accidental, a suicide, or 
school-targeted, the shooter was more often a student or former student. However, when 
the shooting was the result of a dispute or grievance, the shooter was a non-student in 
most cases. 
 
Source: “Exclusionary school discipline approaches not effective at preventing school violence,” by Kara 
Arundel, District Administration, July 21, 2020.  
 

Policy Implications: The trust of this GAO study is impacted by many policies. Policies which 
relate to this topic include, but not limited to, the following: 
 

• #’s 5114, 5131, 5144 pertaining to Suspension/Expulsion, Conduct, Discipline 
• #5131.7 – Weapons and Dangerous Instruments 
• #5131.9 – Gang Activity or Association 
• #5141.5 – Suicide Prevention/Intervention 
• #5144.12 – Restorative Justice Approach 

December 16, 2020     Page 89



~Page 5~ 

• #5144.5 – Progressive Discipline and Discipline of Students 
• #6114.7 – Safe Schools 
• #6142.102 – Social and Emotional Learning 
• #6142.103 – Trauma Informed Schools 

 
Food for Thought: 
 
“In ordinary times, teaching is a never-ending struggle to decide what to say and what not to say, 
when to push and when to back off, when to continue a lesson and when to move on. But how, in 
our present world, does one make such judgments? How does one read the body language, facial 
expressions, and social cues of children wearing masks and sitting six feet apart, or peering 
through laptop computers? There’s no guidebook for teaching in a pandemic. This will be a year 
of dizzying uncertainties, and teachers will need all the resources and supports we can give 
them.” 
 

Source: Rafael Heller in “How Will Teachers Manage to Teach This Year?” in Phi Delta Kappan, 
September 2020 (Vol.102, #102, P.4 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Connecticut Association of Boards of Education ~ 81 Wolcott Hill Road, Wethersfield, CT 06109 ~ 860-571-7446 

 

December 16, 2020     Page 90



~Page 1~ 

Connecticut Association of 
Boards of Education 

 
Vincent A. Mustaro, Senior Staff Associate for Policy Services 

 
PRESENTS 

POLICY HIGHLIGHTS 
 

October 16, 2020 Volume 20 – Issue #8 
 
Virtual Learning May Impact Snow Days: Schools, forced to cancel in-person classes because 
of the pandemic, have become more comfortable with remote teaching. That might mean the end 
of the “snow day.” For generations, snow days meant sleeping in, loafing in front of the TV with 
hot cocoa, and hours of sledding and snowball fights. Now, they are likely to mean logging into a 
laptop for a Zoom lesson on long division. 
 
As the weather cools and winter looms, many school leaders in snow-prone states, are preparing 
teachers, parents and students to say goodbye to snow days. New York City, has canceled them 
for the year, because of the pandemic. The conversation has also started in Connecticut on this 
issue. 
 
New York’s decision followed moves that districts have been making, when schools transitioned 
to online learning and officials realized they could do the same during hazardous weather.  Many 
people believe virtual learning could be used during hazardous weather also. Some educators 
believe the end of the snow day looks inevitable. 
 
However, nostalgia remains strong for some. Snow days growing up were like a “pause on real 
life and a chance to let kids be kids,” said Lauren Higgins, the mother of a 5-year-old boy and 3-
year-old girl in Hingham, Mass. “I can imagine a situation where kids no longer cross their 
fingers watching the weather late at night,” she said. “And it’s a bummer.” 
 
The cancellation of school due to bad weather has always been a thorny issue for school 
administrators. Virtual learning poses a potential alternative to snow days. 
 
The Shakopee Public Schools in Minnesota in 2018 initiated “connected learning days” using 
virtual instruction when the weather forced school closures. Prior to the decision to implement 
the program the district had been cancelling classes eight to ten times a year. 
 
The district believed, as many do, that taking away snow days seemed like a better solution than 
tacking on days at the end of the school year, placing students into hot classrooms and causing 
the disruption of summer plans. 
 
States such as Pennsylvania, Ohio and West Virginia have also redefined snow days as virtual 
learning days to avoid delaying the end of the school year, said Daniel A. Domanech, Executive 
Director of the American Association of School Administrators (AASA). 

December 16, 2020     Page 91

http://www.cabe.org/�


~Page 2~ 

Some also state that since the pandemic has forced many employers to embrace working from 
home, schools should follow suit. Current snow day cancellations provide difficulties for 
working parents. However, the pandemic has caused every day to be a snow day. The tradition of 
snow days has led us to forget what could be done with technology. The pandemic has caused us 
to embrace what we do in a work environment and a school environment. 
 
Jessica Tang, President of the Boston Teachers Union in Massachusetts, said that any changes to 
teachers’ working conditions would have to be negotiated. But she agreed that the pandemic had 
shown that virtual learning could be a practical solution to a variety of problems. “It would be a 
huge mistake if we tried to just go back to what we were doing before,” she said. 
 
However, Ms. Tang indicated that there are unintended consequences to cancelling snow days 
that must be considered by school districts. It is essential to make sure that every student has 
access to a computer and internet. Further, it needs to be considered if the storm necessitating the 
closure has not caused a loss of power impacting online access ability. 
 
In addition, online teaching could be extremely stressful for faculty members with older parents 
whose home health aide could not come to work because of a storm, Ms. Tang said. 
 
Marci J. Swede, dean of the School of Education and Health Sciences at North Central College 
in Naperville, Ill., said many students in college were parents themselves. A snow day that 
disrupts day care could put those students behind if they have to skip online class to care for their 
children “We have to have some compassion for the complexity of the students’ and the 
teachers’ lives,” Ms. Swede said. 
 
Students may consider it as a “birthright” to experience the unexpected treat of snow days. Many 
people have fond and fun memories of their snow days. Those days became a respite from the 
stress of schoolwork, providing a break at a time when more and more work is being placed on 
students. 
 
Ms. Swede, said that snow days were the rare time when everyone — students, faculty and their 
supervisors — felt comfortable taking a sudden break. “It’s kind of nice sometimes, when we all 
kind of have that pause button and we all can just take a moment and breathe a little bit and not 
feel guilty about it,” she said. “There are very few times in our lives when we have enforced 
downtime.” 
 
Mr. Redmond, a Minnesota superintendent, said that after he did away with snow days, it was 
parents, not teachers, who mourned the loss. “My kid might never have a snow day” was a 
common refrain, he said. 
 

Source: “Sorry, Kids. Snow Days Are Probably Over,” by Maria Cramer, New York Times, September 25, 
2020. 

 
Policy Implications: The topic of remote learning in lieu of “snow days” or days school needs to 
be cancelled due to inclement weather has been a topic of thought and discussion among 
Connecticut superintendents. This issue was also discussed at a recent meeting of the State Board 
of Education (SBE). 
 

December 16, 2020     Page 92



~Page 3~ 

There are some legal issues which must be addressed if this concept if to come to fruition. The 
SBE directed the staff of the State Department of Education to develop guidelines for the SBE to 
consider regarding this concept. It will likely be discussed soon at an upcoming SBE meeting. 
We will continue to monitor this topic. 
 
The district’s policy pertaining to the school calendar would be impacted if a change is permitted 
regarding school cancellation days. Policy #6111, “School Calendar” pertains to this topic. 
 
Schools Targets of Cyberattacks: Since late July, many school districts in the United States, 
from California to New Jersey, have been victims of cyberattacks. Such attacks have caused 
school districts to shut down virtual instruction. Cyberattacks on school districts are not new. 
The K-12 Cybersecurity Research Center indicated there have been nearly a thousand such 
incidents since January 2016. 
 
The Hartford Public Schools had to postpone the first day of school on September 8, both 
virtually and in person, after the city was hit by an attack that affected multiple school district 
systems, including one used to communicate transportation routes for buses. 
 
Alyson Klein in Education Week stated,” But as schools nationwide are engaged in full-time 
remote instruction or a hybrid of in-person and virtual learning, such attacks are arguably even 
more disruptive, both to students’ educational as well as social and emotional needs.” A 
cyberattack can have an outsized impact on schooling. A cyber incident that occurs in times of 
remote learning causes the loss of online access for staff and students and stops teaching and 
learning in its tracks. In addition, it adds to what is already a tense and difficult time for school 
districts. 
 
Regretfully, such attacks appear to be increasing this school year. Doug Levin, the founder and 
president of the K-12 Cybersecurity Resource Center, reported that “this school year there have 
been, on average, two hacks a day.” Levin stated, “Cybercriminals have been getting more savvy 
about how to target school districts.” 
 
The attacks have placed a heavy burden on school administrators as they grapple with whether 
it’s safe for students and teachers to return in person and whether schools are prepared to handle 
social distancing and other requirements. 
 
School information technology staffs, meanwhile, have been consumed with the transition to 
virtual learning, making districts even more vulnerable to hackers, experts say. 
 
For years, cybercriminals who launched ransomware attacks typically encrypted data and 
demanded ransom, usually in bitcoin, a cryptocurrency, in exchange for a decryption key. They 
didn’t access the data or make it public. Experts now believe that has been changing. A growing 
number of cybercriminals are getting ahold of the data and threatening to make public sensitive 
information if they don’t get their money. “They’re using data as additional leverage to extort 
payments,” said Brett Callow, a threat analyst for global cybersecurity company Emsisoft. 
 
Ransom demands also have skyrocketed, cybersecurity experts say. Criminals who used to 
demand a few thousand dollars now are asking for an average of $150,000 to $250,000, 
according to Callow. 

December 16, 2020     Page 93



~Page 4~ 

Attention must be given to the prevention of such attacks. Levin suggests that school districts 
should advocate for resources to help build up their IT capacity and team up with nonprofits for 
cyber security monitoring and partner with other school systems. Having a cybersecurity firm on 
retainer that can help with recovery and forensics is also suggested. 
 

Source: “Cyberattacks Disrupt Learning Even More During COVID-19,” by Alyson Klein, Education 
Week, September 30, 2020. 
 
Source: “Cybercriminals Strike Schools Amid Pandemic,” by Jenni Bergal, Stateline Article, PEW 
Charitable Trusts, September 22, 2020. 

 
Policy Implications: Schools and school districts, which face a myriad of challenging hazards 
and threats, must also prepare for cyber threats. Such incidents disrupt education and critical 
operations, expose sensitive personally identifiable information of students, teachers and staff, 
and can lead to high recovery costs. 
 
Cybersecurity is a significant and growing issue as cyber-attacks continue to escalate and 
succeed. Technology has enhanced record keeping, communication and teaching, but a cyber-
attack on a vulnerable technology system can cripple public school operations and result in the 
theft of student, parent and other sensitive information, and in this pandemic situation, cripple 
the teaching process. 
 
The threat is many faceted. Often overlooked is the fact that students and staff can be and are 
frequent sources of cybersecurity problems. School districts have spent heavily on digital 
devices, software and bandwidth, but little in cybersecurity. 
 
In recognition of this growing problem, the National School Boards Association (NSBA) 
introduced an initiative aimed at providing community leaders, including school board members, 
with resources on cybersecurity. NSBA created Cyber Secure Schools, an initiative that provides 
information in key areas and resources. Two timely publications pertaining to this issue 
published by NSBA are “Data Security for Schools - A Legal and Policy Guide for School 
Boards,” and “School Board Communication at Risk.” These can be downloaded from the 
NSBA website. 
 
Another source of information and assistance is CoSN, who in conjunction with Mass Networks 
Education Partnership in Allston, Mass. has produced the “Cyber Security for a Digital District” 
program. (http://www.cosn.org/sites/default/files/8QuestionsCS.pdf). This source contains a list 
of questions for administrators to ask about cybersecurity, a security self-assessment checklist 
and eight questions the superintendent should direct toward his/her chief technology officer. 
 
Several policies pertain to this topic. They include the following: 
 

• P3520.14- Cybersecurity (with an accompanying administrative regulation) 
• P3520 - Data Processing Services 
• P3520.1 - Information Security Breach and Notification 
• P3520.11 - Electronic Information Security 
• P3520.12 – Data-Based Information Management System 
• P3520.13 - Student Data Protection and Privacy/Cloud-Based Issues 

 

December 16, 2020     Page 94

http://www.cosn.org/sites/default/files/8QuestionsCS.pdf


~Page 5~ 

USDA Extends Free Meal Program: On October 9, 2020, The U.S. Department of Agriculture 
(USDA) announced that it would extend flexibilities to allow free meals to continue to be 
available to all children throughout the entire 2020-2021 school year. Specifically, USDA's 
move will enable school districts to continue to leverage the Summer Food Service Program 
(SFSP) and the Seamless Summer Option (SSO) to provide no-cost meals to all children, through 
June 30, 2021. Additionally, the move will permit districts to serve meals outside of the typically 
required group settings and meal times; waive meal pattern requirements, as necessary; and 
allow parents and guardians to pick-up meals for their children through June 30, 2021. 
 
More details on this extension are accessible by clicking here. 
 
Policy Implications: Policies pertaining to food services are found in the 3542 codification 
series. 
 

Source: “USDA Extends Free Meals for Kids for 2020-21 School Year,” by Chris Rogers, AASA’s The 
Legislative Corps, October 12, 2020. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Connecticut Association of Boards of Education ~ 81 Wolcott Hill Road, Wethersfield, CT 06109 ~ 860-571-7446 

 

December 16, 2020     Page 95

http://send.aasa.org/link.cfm?r=f9b1KHaSh9B01KhuovXtYg%7E%7E&pe=5Yrw1P5vPIDNs1LiTvts6T8ITsJXO5Of7CoxJqDHhQoQeHzsXfiO--enTP2YH7FEZ17zJWuGS4_zIQwTNGWbkA%7E%7E&t=SfBNuSzGwf4vK-I0ErOC5A%7E%7E


~Page 1~ 

Connecticut Association of 
Boards of Education 

 
Vincent A. Mustaro, Senior Staff Associate for Policy Services 

 
PRESENTS 

POLICY HIGHLIGHTS 
 

November 13, 2020 Volume 20 – Issue #10 
 
Weather Related Closures Permitted as Remote Learning Days:  The October 16, 2020 issue 
of Policy Highlights discussed the possibility of using remote learning when weather would 
cause the need to cancel school and call a “snow day.” It was indicated that schools, forced to 
cancel in-person classes because of the pandemic, had become more comfortable with remote 
teaching. That might mean the end of the “snow day.” 
 
The topic of remote learning in lieu of “snow days” or days school needs to be cancelled 
due to inclement weather has been a topic of thought and discussion among Connecticut 
superintendents. This issue was discussed at a recent meeting of the State Board of 
Education (SBE). 
 
The SBE meeting held on October 7th, 2020, approved for the duration of the 2020-2021 school 
year the ability of superintendents to choose to treat “snow days” as a Remote Learning Day 
(RLD) or as a day to be made up later in the school year as was the previous practice. 
Commissioner Cardona, in a memorandum to superintendents, dated October 27, 2020, on this 
issue, stated, “When necessary, districts can decide to provide all students with remote learning 
on those days in a manner that is consistent with the regulatory requirements outlined in Adapt, 
Advance, Achieve and Addendum 12. This decision will be made at the local level led by the 
superintendent in consultation with local officials.” 
 
The Commissioner also indicated that a “snow day’ is intended to limit student movement to and 
from school due to unsafe conditions. A RLD snow day remains a work day for all faculty and 
staff. It is recognized that consideration needs to be given to the number of students and faculty 
experiencing power or internet outage circumstances before declaring a remote learning day 
when closed for inclement weather. 
 
The State Department of Education (SDE) in collaboration with Connecticut superintendents, 
CAPSS and other educators developed a guidance to assist superintendents and districts in this 
decision-making process. 
 
Policy Implications: Policy #6114.6, “Emergency Closings,” has been revised to include this 
new option for the duration of the 2020-2021 school year. The SDE promulgated “Guidance for 
Consideration when Implementing Remote Learning Days due to Inclement Weather,” has been 
added to the policy as an appendix providing much useful information to consider. The revised 
policy and appendix are available upon request. It has also been posted on the CABE Website in 
the Policy Section for members under “Hot Topics in Policy.” 

December 16, 2020     Page 96

http://www.cabe.org/�


~Page 2~ 

Update Provided regarding “Snow Days” and Food Service:  On October 27, 2020, the State 
Department of Education (SDE) released the memo “Weather Related Closures as Remote 
Learning Days.” The following was included in that memo: Districts are required to align with 
the guidance outlined in Addendum 13 to provide meals to students on Remote Learning Days in 
place of a called “snow day.” Addendum 13 includes a number of strategies for districts to 
consider in order to increase student access to and participation in school meals. 
 
Districts determining how to provide meals to children during weather related closures 
(weather/snow days) should be aware of the following: 
 

1. While the SDE strongly encourages districts to make nutritious meals available to 
students to support their academic achievement and emotional well-being, districts are 
not required to provide meals on weather/snow days regardless of how the district is 
considering the day (as a school day with remote learning or as a cancellation). 
 

2. If the weather/snow day is counted as a school day, meals can be made available that 
day or provided day(s) before, with the intent to be consumed on the weather/snow day, 
and be reimbursed. 

 
3. If the weather/snow day is not counted as a school day, meals can be made available 

and reimbursed only if the district has opted into the Summer Food Service Program 
(SFSP) or Seamless Summer Option (SSO) under the federal Child Nutrition Program 
waivers (instead of the traditional National School Lunch Program and School Breakfast 
Program models). 

 
4. If the weather related cancellation is called off and school is actually in session and the 

district has provided meals the day(s) before in anticipation of the weather/snow day, the 
district cannot also be reimbursed for meals served to in-person learning students for 
whom meals were provided (i.e., the district cannot serve and be reimbursed for double 
meals for the same day.) 

 
5. Districts should clearly communicate their policies for providing meals during 

weather/snow days to families. 
 
The updated Addendum 5 has been added to CABE’s online COVID-19 Resource webpage at 
https://www.cabe.org/page.cfm?p=1512. 
 
Policy Implications: Policies in the #3542ff codifications pertain to the many and various 
aspects of the food service operation. The above described issues are operational, not requiring 
policy revision. 
 
Update Provided Regarding African American/Black & Puerto Rican/Latino Curriculum: 
The 2019 session of the General Assembly passed Public Act 19-12, “An Act Concerning the 
Inclusion of Black and Latino Studies in the Public School Curriculum.” 
 
This Act added African-American and black and Puerto Rican and Latino studies to the required 
programs of study for public schools and requires all boards of education to include these topics 
in their curriculum beginning with the 2021-22 school year. As with other courses required under 
law, the State Board of Education (SBE) must make curriculum materials available to help 
boards develop their instructional programs. 

December 16, 2020     Page 97

https://u3352875.ct.sendgrid.net/ss/c/qiFDLNv_nH48tAE0aRgYbzuf6uSy8WVzf9waj8qFI7prmDZGoY8uT54D29tU9pAJ/36m/OeFbtqrGRuykqc-Sug3Jvw/h1/h8FtpiGkYlY-3rXLUAyIBNsEHugDP4A1BMM3l_KUmXQ


~Page 3~ 

The Act also requires SBE to review and approve, by January 1, 2021, a black and Latino studies 
high school course. Under this legislation: 
 

1. the State Education Resource Center (SERC) must develop the course,  
2. SBE must make course curriculum material available,  
3. boards may offer the course beginning with the 2021-22 school year, and  
4. boards must offer the course beginning with the 2022-23 school year.  

 
For the school years 2022-23 to 2024-25, SDE must conduct an annual audit to ensure that the 
black and Latino studies course approved under the Act is being offered by each board of 
education. SDE must annually submit a report on the audit to the Legislature’s Education 
Committee. 
 
On November 2nd, 2020, the SDE and SERC provided an update regarding the African 
American/Black and Puerto Rican/Latino course in a memorandum from Education 
Commissioner Cardona and SERC Executive Director Canady. They indicated the following: 
 

1. SDE and SERC have been developing the mandated one-credit, year-long high school 
elective course and curriculum in collaboration with many groups and individuals. 

2. SERC has created the Public Act 19-12: An Act Concerning the Inclusion of Black and 
Latino Studies in the Public School Curriculum Website. The website includes a draft 
course description and draft learning objectives. 

3. The draft African American/Black and Puerto Rican/Latino curriculum will be presented 
to the State Board of Education on December 2, 2020, for review and approval. 

4. Webinars to provide schools and districts an overview of the curriculum were also 
provided. 

 
Policy Implications: Policy #6142, “Basic Instructional Program” was revised to reflect this 
new legislation at the time of passage. It is available upon request. It can also been found in the 
CORE Policy manual on the CABE website. This policy is considered a recommended policy for 
inclusion in a district’s policy manual. 
 
Teachers Crowdsource to Fund Covid-19 Safety Measures: Teachers in New York City are 
raising funds for air purifiers via online crowdsourcing sites to help prevent the spread of the 
coronavirus in classrooms. The efforts stem from concerns about classroom air quality and 
circulation along with worries that city officials are not doing enough to make classrooms safe. 
 
 New York City Education Department officials say they’ve purchased 30,000 HEPA purifiers 
and have already distributed half of those to school buildings. However, hundreds of school 
staffers are filling in the gaps on their own. In New York City, crowdfunding efforts through 
DonorsChoose have brought in $159,000 for air purifiers, according to a spokesperson for the 
platform that connects teachers in high needs areas to donors. 
 
Ventilation worries are increasing again as the weather turns colder, with many educators 
wondering if they’ll be able to withstand keeping their windows open, which the city has touted 
as a way to keep classrooms safer. Certain kinds of portable HEPA air purifiers could potentially 
help catch coronavirus particles and curb the spread of COVID-19 along with other 
precautionary measures like wearing masks and social distancing, experts say. 

December 16, 2020     Page 98



~Page 4~ 

“It is very important to understand that portable air cleaners, improved filtration in HVAC 
systems, and increased outdoor air supply can significantly reduce inhaled dose of aerosol 
particle concentrations in classrooms for those away from an infector,” stated Richard Corsi, 
Portland State University’s Dean of Engineering and an expert on indoor air quality. “They do 
not appreciably reduce the dose of aerosol particles for someone standing near an infector who is 
speaking or coughing. For this close contact case physical distancing and required mask wearing 
by everyone is critical.” 
 
 “Increasing the outdoor air supply rate will help to reduce indoor aerosol particles that came out 
of an infector’s respiratory system,” Corsi explained. “I know that this is ‘trickier’ in a colder 
climate like New York City compared to warmer climates. A good portable HEPA air cleaner in 
the right sized classroom can give you results equivalent to three to five air changes per hour of 
clean outdoor air, in terms of aerosol particle reduction.” 
 

Source: “Seeking safer classrooms, NYC teachers are crowdfunding for air purifiers,” by Amy Zimmerman 
and Christina Veiga, Chalkbeat/New York, November 4, 2020. 

 
Policy Implications: Policy #3281, “Crowdfunding” and accompanying administrative 
regulations, pertain to this topic. Many versions are available. This topic was recently updated in 
the November edition of the quarterly Policy Update Service publication. 
 
Food for Thought: 
“To have a job without a workplace, you must build an office of the mind. Structure, routine, 
focus, socialization, networking, stress release-their creation is almost entirely up to you, alone 
in a spare bedroom or on your couch, where your laptop might vie for attention at any given 
moment with your pets or kids. If the coffee pot runs dry, there is no one to blame but yourself.” 
 

Source: Amanda Mull in “A Cubicle Never Looked So Good,” in The Atlantic, October 2020 (Vol. 326, #3, 
pp. 30-32) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Connecticut Association of Boards of Education ~ 81 Wolcott Hill Road, Wethersfield, CT 06109 ~ 860-571-7446 

 

December 16, 2020     Page 99



~Page 1~ 

Connecticut Association of 

Boards of Education 
 

Vincent A. Mustaro, Senior Staff Associate for Policy Services 

 

PRESENTS 

POLICY HIGHLIGHTS 
 

November 27, 2020 Volume 20 – Issue #11 

 

Student Privacy Protections in the Online Classroom: The pandemic has resulted in an 

entirely new way of going to school. As a result of the near-ubiquitous use of cameras to deliver 

two-way online instruction, legal considerations, especially the issue of student privacy, have 

emerged. 

 

FERPA, the Federal Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act, governs the extent to which 

personally identifiable student information (PII) contained in student records is private and 

confidential and the manner in which such information can be disclosed. 

 

FERPA provides that personally identifiable information from a student’s educational records 

cannot be disclosed to a third party, including other students, without parental consent or that of 

an “eligible” student over the age of 18. However, the law provides specific exceptions to this 

consent requirement. 

 

Personally identifiable information includes student names and images. An educational record is 

not created, covered by FERPA, if an online session is not recorded. A recorded session’s video 

would contain images of individual students and raises the question regarding FERPA required 

consent. FERPA permits school districts to disclose a student’s name, identifier or institutional 

email in the course of conducting a class in which the student is enrolled. This allows the names 

of students to appear underneath their images in the screen of an online class. 

 

The Student Privacy Policy Office (SPPO) of the U.S. Department of Education has provided 

several examples in which a video of a student would be considered directly related to that 

student and would be considered an educational record. The examples provided include the 

following: 

 

• When the student is intended to be the focus of the video (e.g. a student presentation). 

• When the video will be used for a disciplinary or other “official” purpose. 

• When the video records a student getting injured, becoming ill, or suffering a health 

emergency. 

• When the student’s personally identifiable information from his/her educational records 

are visible or discussed.  

 

December 16, 2020     Page 100



~Page 2~ 

A recording of a classroom session showing the teacher providing instruction is unlikely to be 

considered an educational record of the students in the class. However, it is uncertain as to under 

what conditions a recording of a class showing student participation in discussion s or answering 

questions becomes an educational record. The SPPO guidance is that unless the recording 

included an activity or event focused solely on an individual student, the video should not be 

considered an education record pursuant to FERPA. 

 

Questions also arise because an online classroom encompasses both an educational environment 

and a home environment. The SPPO has provided some guidance. The SPPO has drawn parallels 

between virtual learning, where students appear on a screen in a virtual classroom, to appearing 

in a physical classroom. The SPPO recommends that districts consider similar precautions as 

done when permitting a visitor in the classroom. The federal guidance is that the determination 

of who can observe a virtual classroom, similar to an in person classroom, is a local school 

decision because teachers generally do not disclose personally identifiable information from a 

student’s education record during classroom instruction. FERPA does not prohibit individuals 

observing a classroom. 

 

FERPA, according to SPPO, does not prohibit teachers from recording online classes and sharing 

the recording with students unable to attend the class, provided the teacher does not disclose 

personally identifiable information from specific student education records during the virtual 

lesson. The recording of a whole class lesson would generally not be considered an education 

record for a specific student. 

 

Ajit Gopalakrishnan, Chief Performance Officer of the Connecticut State Department of 

Education, in a memorandum to school superintendents, recommended a number of 

considerations that districts consider regarding student privacy issues. They include the 

following: 

 

• Follow the same practices that you would for parents observing their child in the 

classroom setting;  

• Ensure that everyone utilizing platforms, including staff, parents, and guardians, and to 

the extent appropriate, students, are aware of the unique privacy issues that might arise 

with virtual learning, and suggest families consider risks with online communications; 

• Avoid use of private, individually identifiable information in group virtual settings;  

• Limit the use of individually identifiable information in one-on-one virtual settings to 

absolutely necessary situations, and only within district-approved, secure communication 

channels; 

• Encourage that parents provide a quiet space with reasonable adult supervision as 

necessary (not adult participation);  

• To respect the privacy rights of all students, instruct parents to refrain from recording the 

virtual class session, unless necessary related to access or special education, in which 

case the district may wish to request a case-by-case conversation with the family;  

• Allow each user/student to prevent their picture from being broadcast to the entire group;  

• Consider whether parents should be permitted to opt-out of synchronous educational 

opportunities; however, conditioning a students’ access to continued educational 

opportunities on the parent signing certain legal waivers is inappropriate; 

December 16, 2020     Page 101



~Page 3~ 

• If the district has declared name and video/photographs to be directory information, 

identify those families who have opted out of having their directory information shared 

and discuss with the parents the possibility of allowing their child to participate in this 

activity and that such participation shall not waive their “opt-out” with respect to other 

instances of sharing directory information. 

• The Commissioner has waived certain requirements of Connecticut’s data privacy 

statutes with respect to individual district contracting with providers of online services. 

Therefore, if a district seeks to use a provider who would be subject to these data privacy 

statutes, but with whom the district does not have a contract, it can do so only if that 

provider has digitally pledged to comply with state statutory requirements through the 

Connecticut Educational Software Hub at https://connecticut.learnplatform.com/. 

Additional information about the Hub and privacy considerations is available from the 

Connecticut Commission for Educational Technology at http://www.ct.gov/edtech. 

 
Source: “Protecting Student Privacy in an Online Classroom,” by Gregory A. Gillen, Esq., On Board, New York State 

Schools Boards Association, October 12, 2020. 

 

Source: “Federal Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA) and other Student Privacy Considerations during the 

COVID-19 Pandemic,” by Ajit Gopalakrishnan, Chief Performance Officer, Connecticut Department of Education, April 7, 

2020. 

 

Policy Implications: A number of policies pertain to this topic. They include the following: 

 

• #3516.6 – Operations of Schools During COVID-19 Pandemic 

• #3520.1 – Information Security Breach and Notification 

• #3520.11 – Electronic Information Security 

• #3520.12 – Data-Based Information Management System Confidentiality Policy 

• #3520.13 – Student Data Privacy 

• #5125 – Student Records; Confidentiality 

• #5131.42 – Virtual/Remote Learning Code of Conduct 

• #5145.15 – Directory Information 

• #6162.51 – Surveys of Students/Student Privacy 

 

Clearly, this is an area in which local districts need to contact their legal counsel. 

 

Deadline for Sexual Harassment Prevention Training Again Extended: As a result of 

Executive Order No. 9L, the Connecticut Commission on Human Rights and Opportunities 

(CHRO) has extended to February 9, 2021 the sexual harassment prevention training 

requirement. The new deadline pertains only to school districts that have not already satisfied the 

sexual harassment training requirement. 

 

P.A. 19-16, “An Act Combatting Sexual Assault and Sexual Harassment,” made several changes 

concerning sexual harassment, sexual assault, discrimination complaints filed with the 

Commission on Human Rights and Opportunities and related matters. The Act specified the 

sexual harassment training and information requirement includes anyone employed by an 

employer, including someone employed by his or her parent, spouse, or child. 

 

 

December 16, 2020     Page 102

https://connecticut.learnplatform.com/
http://www.ct.gov/edtech


~Page 4~ 

This legislation expanded requirements for employers to train employees on sexual harassment 

laws and required CHRO to make related training materials available.  The new statute originally 

indicated the training to be completed by October 1, 2020. This was then changed to January 1, 

2021 because of the pandemic. CHRO has developed a free, online training and education video 

that fulfills the Act’s training requirements. 

 

Employers with three or more employees are also required to post in a prominent and accessible 

place a notice stating that sexual harassment is illegal and the remedies available to victims. This 

statute also requires employers to send a copy of this information to employees by email within 

three months of their hire if the employer has provided an email account to the employee or the 

employee has provided the employer with an email address.  If an employer has not provided 

email accounts to employees, it must post the information on its website, if it has one. 

 

Policy Implications: Policy #4118.112/4218.112, “Sexual Harassment” and its accompanying 

administrative regulation and forms pertain to this topic. This is a recommended policy for 

placement in a district’s policy manual. Versions are available upon request or can be found in 

the CORE Manual posted on the CABE website.  

 

Food for Thought: 

 

“We must find time to stop and thank the people who make a difference in our lives.” 

John F. Kennedy 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Connecticut Association of Boards of Education ~ 81 Wolcott Hill Road, Wethersfield, CT 06109 ~ 860-571-7446 

 

December 16, 2020     Page 103



~Page 1~ 

Connecticut Association of 

Boards of Education 
 

Vincent A. Mustaro, Senior Staff Associate for Policy Services 

 

PRESENTS 

POLICY HIGHLIGHTS 
 

December 11, 2020 Volume 20 – Issue #12 

 

Key Roles Identified for Board Chairpersons: At this time of year many boards of education 

are holding their organizational meeting and electing the officers of the board. The most 

important of the officers is the position of chairperson. The chairperson’s role involves more 

than just presiding at all board of education meetings. The person elected to this important 

position has many opportunities to assist the board fulfill its roles and responsibilities effectively. 

 

This position is extremely vital and conducive to the achievement of a smoothly functioning 

board of education. Listed below are some of the traits and crucial responsibilities of effective 

board chairpersons. 

 

1. Manage the public comment portion of meetings. 

Skill and tact are required to ensure that the public comment portion of the board meeting 

goes well. The chairperson needs to ensure that all individuals are informed of the 

board’s policy concerning public comment. Further, he/she must, as presiding officer of 

the board, follow the board’s procedures and maintain proper decorum. It is essential, 

especially if things become unruly, to ensure that the integrity of the meeting is 

maintained. 

2. Act as the voice of the board. 

It is recommended that the board chairperson serve as the official spokesperson with the 

media and various stakeholder groups regarding the actions of the board. In the response 

to questions pertaining to the official actions taken by the board, the chairperson should 

be the individual to clearly convey the message of the board majority.  

3. Mediate conflict. 

Disagreements and conflict are inevitable on a school board. The chairperson is the 

appropriate person to handle such difficult discussions, making sure that the concerns and 

views of all parties are addressed. The necessary steps to preserve board unity and the 

appropriate relationship of those involved require tact, skill, patience and understanding. 

4. Assist in the creation of the agenda for board meetings. 

In consultation with the superintendent of schools, the board chairperson should assist in 

establishing the agenda for each meeting of the board. He/she needs to confirm that each 

agenda item is appropriate for board consideration and within the board’s role. The 

agenda items should reflect sufficient background work to help board members 

sufficiently understand the issue and any available options. The agenda items should also 

be supportive of the board’s vision and mission. 

December 16, 2020     Page 104



~Page 2~ 

5. Facilitate the superintendent’s evaluation. 

The chairperson should lead the annual evaluation process of the superintendent. Board 

members should clearly understand and be trained in the process and the instrument, 

mutually agreed upon by the board and superintendent, that the district uses to conduct 

this important evaluation. 

6. Promote continuous professional development for the board. 

Professional development for board members is just as critical as it is for teachers and 

administrators. Better-informed decisions and clearer goals can result from board 

members participating in board retreats, board self-evaluations, webinars and 

conferences. CABE provides a continuous and varied program of professional 

development programs for board members. Further, the involvement and discussion of 

participation in professional development activities can build camaraderie and more 

productive board member relationships. 

7. Provide for the orientation of new board members. 

In order to become valuable and contributing members of the board, newly elected or 

appointed members to the board need guidance, direction and training. It is critical that 

the chairperson ensure that the district has a planned process to assist new board members 

get properly oriented to their roles as board members in a manner that encourages 

understanding of how a board functions, cooperation and collaboration.  

 

The important roles described above do not entail all that the role of the board chair entails. It is 

recommended the board chairs participate in CABE’s biweekly online board chairs forum which 

will assist individuals in these positions understand key and critical issues, especially during the 

COVID-19 crisis. Much can be learned from the manner in which the many challenges of this 

position are being met in other districts around the state. 

 

Mark Snyder, Leadership Development Manager, for the New York School Boards Association 

correctly stated, “Effective governance begins with effective leadership, and the more time that 

board presidents (chairpersons) spend honing their skills, the greater their contributions will be to 

their districts and their communities.” 

 
Source: “7 key roles of every board president,” by Mark Snyder, On Board, New York Schools Boards 

Association, July 20, 2020. 

 

Policy Implications: Many bylaws of boards of education speak to the issues described above. 

They include, but are not limited to, the following: 

 

 Bylaw #9012 – Legal Responsibilities of Boards of Education 

 Bylaw #9121 – Chairperson 

 Bylaw 9230 – New Board Member Orientation 

 Bylaw #9249 –Board Member Development 

 Bylaw #9270 – Conflict of Interest 

 Bylaw #9271 – Code of Ethics 

 Bylaw #9273 – Civility 

 Bylaw #9325 – Meeting Conduct 

 Bylaw   9325.2 – Order of Business 

 Bylaw #9325.3 – Parliamentary Procedure 

 Bylaw #9321 – Time, Place, Notification of Meetings 

 Bylaw #9321.2 – Electronic Board of Education Meetings 

 Bylaw #9322 – Public and Executive Sessions 

December 16, 2020     Page 105



~Page 3~ 

 Bylaw #9400 – Board Self-Evaluation 
 Policy #1205 – Agenda Format/Preparation/ Dissemination 
 Policy #200.1 – Board-Superintendent Relationship 
 Policy #2400 – Evaluation Process of Superintendent 

 
Samples of the above are available upon request from the CABE Policy Department. Many may 
also be found on CABE’s website in the sample “Core Manual.” 
 
Anniversary of Special Education Landmark Legislation Noted: Nov. 29, 2020, marked the 
45th anniversary of President Gerald Ford signing the Education for All Handicapped Children 
Act (Public Law 94-142), now known as the Individuals with Disabilities Education Act (IDEA). 
In adopting this landmark civil rights measure, Congress noted that the law would accomplish 
two important goals: 
 

1. It would guarantee a free appropriate public education to every child, regardless of 
disability, on an equal basis with all other children; and 

2. It would advance all Americans’ understanding of disability by bringing children with 
disability out of the shadows and into American schools where their gifts and strengths 
could be recognized. 

 
Progress has been made over the years, but work remains to address the challenges that still 
exist. Many children with disabilities have been helped to achieve their goals. Work must 
continue to ensure that all children have the supports they need and to find ways for all disabled 
children to achieve meaningful results and outcomes. However, the fact remains that much, 
worthy of celebration, has been accomplished. 
 
Policy Implications: Most operational aspects of implementing the many factors of this 
legislation are found in the district’s special education procedural manual, not in the board’s 
policy manual. However, districts should consider having the following policies in their board 
policy manual: 
 

 Policy #6159 – Individualized Education Program/Special Education Program 
 Policy #6171 – Special Education 
 Policy #6171.1 – Inclusion 
 Policy #6171.2 – Preschool Special Education 
 Policy #6181 – Evaluation of Special Education Program  
 Policy #3231 – Medicaid Reimbursement for Special Education Students 
 Policy #5145.71 – Surrogate Parent Program 
 Policy #5118.1 – Homeless Students 

 
Samples of the above are available upon request from the CABE Policy Department. Many may 
also be found on CABE’s website in the sample “Core Manual.” 
 

Food for Thought: 

 
“We are not here to curse the darkness, but to light the candle that can guide us through that 
darkness to a safe and sane future.” John F. Kennedy 
 
“Fight for the things that you care about, but do it in a way that will lead others to join you.” 
Ruth Bader Ginsburg 

 

 

Connecticut Association of Boards of Education ~ 81 Wolcott Hill Road, Wethersfield, CT 06109 ~ 860-571-7446 

 

December 16, 2020     Page 106



6945656v1

2020 MODEL POLICY INDEX 

1000 Series - COMMUNITY/BOARD OPERATIONS 

Automatic External Defibrillators 

Deadly Weapons or Firearms 

Green Cleaning Programs (see C-19) 

Non-Discrimination (Community) – BOE updated 1/22/18 

Pesticide Application on School Property 

Pool Safety Plan 

Security and Safety Plan 

Sexual Offenders on School Property 

Smoking – BOE Updating 12/14/20 

Use of School Facilities – BOE Updated 11/19/19 

Visitors  – BOE Updated 11/5/18 

Volunteers (see C-19) 

2000 Series - ADMINISTRATION 

Hold on Destruction of Records (Litigation) 

Retention of Electronic Records and Information – BOE 

Updated 12/7/20 

Uniform Treatment of Recruiters 

3000 Series - BUSINESS 

Budget Procedures and Line Item Transfers 

Code of Conduct Child Nutrition Program – BOE Updated 

1/6/20 

Disposal of Obsolete or Surplus Equipment/Material 

Gifts, Grants and Bequests To The District 

IDEA Fiscal Compliance 

Purchasing – BOE Updated 3/12/18 

School Activity Funds 

December 16, 2020     Page 107



Shipman & Goodwin December 2020 Policy Updates 

Athletic Coaches (Evaluatn & Terminatn) (v12 to11) 

Child Sex Abuse or Assault Response/Report (v3to2) 

Code of Conduct Federal Procurements (v9 to 8) 

Deadly Weapons or Firearms (v8 to 7) 

Employee Use of District Computer (v.13 to 12) 

Employment and Student Teacher Checks (v.19 to 18) 

Field Trips (v3 to 2) 

Health Assessments/Screenings (v21 to 20) 

IDEA - Alternative Assessments (v5 to 4) 

Non-discrimination (Community) (v7 to 6) 

Non-discrimination (Personnel)(v21 to 20) 

Non-discrimination (Students) (v.22 to 21) 

Purchasing (v6 to 5) 

Section 504/ADA (Personnel) (v6 to 3) 

Sex Discrim./Harassment Policy Personnel (v14to13) 

Student Discipline (v68 to 67) 

Student Records (FERPA) (v47 to 46) 

Student Use of the District Computer (v13 to 12) 

Title IX Sex Discrimination/Sex Harass (v20 to 19) 

Use of Private Technological Devices Stud.(v3 to2) 

Use of School Facilities (v14 to 13) 

Volunteers (v4 to 3) 

December 16, 2020     Page 108

https://www.shipmangoodwin.com/getfile.aspx?section=Policy&Id=18323
https://www.shipmangoodwin.com/getfile.aspx?section=Policy&Id=18334
https://www.shipmangoodwin.com/getfile.aspx?section=Policy&Id=18320
https://www.shipmangoodwin.com/getfile.aspx?section=Policy&Id=18314
https://www.shipmangoodwin.com/getfile.aspx?section=Policy&Id=18325
https://www.shipmangoodwin.com/getfile.aspx?section=Policy&Id=18321
https://www.shipmangoodwin.com/getfile.aspx?section=Policy&Id=18333
https://www.shipmangoodwin.com/getfile.aspx?section=Policy&Id=18328
https://www.shipmangoodwin.com/getfile.aspx?section=Policy&Id=18336
https://www.shipmangoodwin.com/getfile.aspx?section=Policy&Id=18317
https://www.shipmangoodwin.com/getfile.aspx?section=Policy&Id=18322
https://www.shipmangoodwin.com/getfile.aspx?section=Policy&Id=18327
https://www.shipmangoodwin.com/getfile.aspx?section=Policy&Id=18319
https://www.shipmangoodwin.com/getfile.aspx?section=Policy&Id=18324
https://www.shipmangoodwin.com/getfile.aspx?section=Policy&Id=18326
https://www.shipmangoodwin.com/getfile.aspx?section=Policy&Id=18332
https://www.shipmangoodwin.com/getfile.aspx?section=Policy&Id=18329
https://www.shipmangoodwin.com/getfile.aspx?section=Policy&Id=18331
https://www.shipmangoodwin.com/getfile.aspx?section=Policy&Id=18335
https://www.shipmangoodwin.com/getfile.aspx?section=Policy&Id=18330
https://www.shipmangoodwin.com/getfile.aspx?section=Policy&Id=18313
https://www.shipmangoodwin.com/getfile.aspx?section=Policy&Id=18318


 

2 

 

4000 Series - PERSONNEL 
 

Abuse or Neglect of Disabled Adults 

Alcohol, Tobacco and Drug-Free Workplace – BOE Updated 

10/5/20 

Athletic Coaches (Evaluation and Termination) – BOE 

Updated 4/27/20 

Bloodborne Pathogens 

Child Abuse or Neglect Reporting – BOE Updated 12/16/19 

 NEW - Code of Ethics – BOE Updated 10/5/20 

Concussion Training for Athletic Coaches 

Employee Use of District Computer Systems (see C-19) 

Employment and Student Teacher Checks – BOE Updated 

8/31/20 (also see C-19) 

FMLA 

Hiring of Certified Staff – BOE Updated 3/26/18 

Hiring of Non-certified Staff 

Nepotism  

Non-discrimination (Personnel) – BOE Updated 11/11/19 

Plan for Minority Staff Recruitment – BOE Updated 12/7/20 

Psychotropic Drugs – BOE Updated 11/11/19 

Section 504/ADA (Personnel) – BOE Updated 1/22/18 

Sex Discrimination and Harassment in the Workplace – BOE 

Updated 8/31/20 

Social Media – BOE In Progress May 2020 

Sudden Cardiac Arrest Awareness 

 

 

5000 Series - STUDENTS 

 

Administration of Medications – BOE Updated 9/17/18 

Attendance, Truancy and Chronic Absenteeism – BOE 

Updated 12/16/19 (also see C-19) 

Bullying and Safe School Climate Plan – BOE Updated 

6/11/18 

Chemical Health for Student Athletes – BOE In Progress 

November 2020, Combine with 5131.6 

Child Sex Abuse or Assault Response and Reporting – BOE 

Updating 12/14/20 

Drug and Alcohol Use by Students – BOE In Progress 

November 2020 

Education Stability Procedures Students – BOE In Progress 

December 2020 

Field Trips – BOE Updated 6/11/18 

December 16, 2020     Page 109



 

3 

 

Food Allergies and/or Glycogen Storage Disease 

Fundraising Activities 

Graduation Requirements – BOE Updated 4/27/20 (6000 

series) 

Health Assessments/Screenings – BOE Updated 11/19/19 

Homeless Students – BOE Updated 11/11/19 

Immunizations – BOE Updated 11/19/19 (same as Health 

Assessments) 

Non-discrimination (Students) – BOE Updated 11/22/18 

Physical Activity and Student Discipline  – BOE Updated 

11/11/19 

Pledge of Allegiance  – BOE Updated 11/19/19 

Restraint and Seclusion  – BOE Updated 11/16/20 

Search and Seizure  – BOE In Progress December 2020 

Section 504/ADA (Students) – BOE Updated 9/17/18 

Student Discipline  – BOE Updated 4/2/18 (see also C-19) 

Student Dress – BOE Updated 10/5/20 

Student Privacy (PPRA) – BOE Updated 1/6/20 

Student Records (FERPA) – BOE Updated 1/6/20 

Student Use of the District Computer Systems  (see C-19) 

Suicide Prevention and Intervention 

Sunscreen Application in School 

Title IX Sex Discrimination and Sexual Harassment – BOE 

Updated 8/31/20 

Transportation (see C-19) 

Use of Private Technology Devices by Students (see C-19) 

Wellness 

 

 

6000 Series - INSTRUCTION 

 

Credit for Online Courses – BOE Updated 10/5/20 

Curricular Exemptions 

Homework 

IDEA - Alternative Assessments 

Parent and Family Engagement Policy (Title I) – BOE 

Updated 10/5/20 

Parental Access to Instructional Materials 

Parent-teacher Communication 

Promotion and Retention 

Weighted Grading for Honors Classes 
 

 

 

December 16, 2020     Page 110



 

4 

 

 

 

December 16, 2020     Page 111



 

5 

 

9000 Series – BYLAWS – BOE updated and reviewed all bylaws October 2019 

 

 

Board Bylaws (Adoption and/or Revision) 

Board Policies (Adoption and/or Revision) 

Board Regulations (Adoption and/or Revision) 

Code of Conduct for Board Members 

Committees 

Conflict of Interest 

Construction and Posting of Agenda 

Filling Vacancies 

Meeting Conduct 

Minutes 

Oath of Office 

Officers 

Official Duties – Chairperson 

Official Duties – Secretary 

Official Duties – Treasurer 

Official Duties - Vice Chairperson 

Public Meetings and Executive Session 

Quorum and Voting Procedures 

Reimbursement of Board Member Expenses 

Removal of Board Officers 

Role of Board and Members 

Suspension of Policies, Bylaws or Regulations 

Time, Place and Notice of Meetings 

Transaction of Business 

 

 

C-19 Series – COVID-19 Policies 
 

Board Bylaws/Meeting Conduct – BOE Updated 8/31/20 

Community/Green Cleaning – BOE updated 8/17/20 (3000 

series) 

Community/Use of School Facilities – BOE Updated 8/13/20 

Community/Visitors and Observers – BOE Updated 8/13/20 

Community/Volunteers – BOE Updated 8/13/20 

FFRCA – BOE Updated 8/31/20 

Model Required Annual Notices 

Personnel/Employment and Student Teacher Checks – BOE 

Updated 8/31/20 

Personnel/Use of District Computer Systems– BOE Updated 

10/2/20 

December 16, 2020     Page 112



 

6 

 

Students/Attendance, Truancy, Chronic Absenteeism – BOE 

Updated 8/13/20 

Students/Health Assessments 

Students/Student Discipline  – BOE Updated 8/13/20 

Students/Transportation – BOE Updated 8/17/20 

Students/Use of District Computer Systems – BOE Updated 

8/31/20 

Students/Use of Private Technology Devices – BOE Updated 

8/31/20 

Temporary Policies and Regulations – BOE Updated 8/13/20 

NEW - Use of Face Coverings in School – BOE Updated 

11/16/20 

 

December 16, 2020     Page 113


	CABE Policy Service November 2020
	CABE Update September_4_2020
	CABE Update September_18_2020
	CABE Update October_2_2020
	CABE October_16_2020
	CABE November 13 2020
	CABE November 27 2020
	CABE December 11 2020



